
 
 

 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
PURCHASING DIVISION 1100 TENTH STREET, COLUMBUS, GEORGIA 31901 

P. O. BOX 1340, COLUMBUS, GEORGIA 31902-1340 
  706-225-4087, Fax 706-225-3033 
  www.columbusga.gov 
 

  
August 9, 2018 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Financial Services:  Banking, Smart Card & Merchant Services 
(Annual Contract) 
RFP No. 19-0002 

 

Proposals should include acknowledgement of receipt for all Addenda. 
 

 
Vendors are informed that the above subject RFP is hereby modified, corrected, or supplemented as 
specified, described and set forth in this Addendum: 
 
 

QUESTIONS/RESPONSES: 
1. Please provide the name of the current merchant services vendor(s) and card processing rates 

paid by the City. 
Response:  Merchant e-Solutions is the current merchant services vendor.  See 
Attachment A for card processing rates. 

 
2. Please provide a copy of a recent monthly billing statement from the current merchant services 

provider. 
Response:  See Attachment B. 

 
3. Please provide an estimated timeline of award for the Merchant Services option, project start 

and go-live date expectations. 
Response:  Columbus Consolidated Government anticipates awarding the contract late 
September 2018.  The go-live date is November 1, 2018. 

 
4. Please provide an estimated count of POS terminals desired for each department included in the 

scope of this project. 
Response:  See Attachment C. 

 
5. Will the City be assigning a central project manager/project sponsor and technical liaison to 

assist with coordinating the implementations of all departments in scope or will the selected 
provider be working with each individual department independently? 
Response:  There will be a central project manager and technical liaison. 

 
6. Please provide an estimated number of completed chargeback transactions and total revenue 

over an annual period.   
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Response:  July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018 we had ten (10) chargebacks with a total dollar 
amount of $2,310 within four (4) departments of the City. 

 
7. Please describe the use or use case the City currently uses or intendeds to use mobile based 

credit card processing. 
Response:  The City currently has two (2) departments that use SwipeSimple with an 
EMV card reader. 

 
8. Does the City desire an eCheck option (check ACH conversion), in addition to credit card, for 

future web payments? 
Response:  Not at this time. 

 
9. Is the City open to a phased implementation approach where 3 to 4 departments are 

implemented at a time or does the City intend for all 26 departments to go-live on the same 
date? 
Response:  No, the City is not open to a phased implementation approach.  The current 
contract expires October 31, 2018 and a phased implementation approach would leave 
some departments without credit card services. 

 
10. Does the City require POS terminal integration with a host system and/or cashiering system?  If 

yes, please provide a list of the department, the corresponding system, and vendor/provider. 
Response:   At this time, the City does not require POS terminal integration with a host 
system and/or cashiering system. 

 
11. Is the City interested in the future vendor assessing the cardholder a transaction service fee (for 

departments that qualify for the government service fee program) to fund the costs related to 
merchant procession? 
Response:  As noted on page 55, Section B, last sentence of the RFP, “The City is interested 
in an option for credit card payment processing that will pass the fees to the consumer”. 

 
12. How many Ingenico point-of-sales (POS) devices are in use?  How many devices? 

Response:  34. 
 
13. What is the make and model of the virtual terminals (VTs) in use?  Are [our] VT products an 

option?   
Response:  The City currently uses Merchant e-Solutions VTs and changing is an option. 

 
14. [We] would replace your smartphone app with our mobile app.  Are you agreeable to having a 

new app? 
Response:  Yes 

 
15. In regards to the need for a PC-based cashiering system:  Will the City build this, or do you 

want to purchase a product from [our] integrated vendors?   
Response:  The City currently does not use a PC-based cashiering system.  There is a 
possibility that the City may use one in the future; where the precut comes from will be a 
decision that is made at that time. 

 
16. Do all offices use the same POS solution? 

Response:  Two departments use a different POS due to the specific software used in the 
departments. 
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17. Identify third-party vendors within your payment environment, if applicable. 

Response:  N/A 
 
18. Does the City currently use tokenization/encryption?  If so, what company is providing these 

services and which encryption methods and products are being used? 
Response:  The City currently uses tokenization for our banking services with Synovus 
Bank. 

 
19. Please describe any fraud screen techniques and/or detection tools that are currently being used.  

What types of fraud do you most commonly experience? 
Response:  The City does not have any fraud screen techniques at this time and have not 
experienced any fraud. 

 
20. What other payments options are in scope for this RFP or in the future (e.g. electronic checks, 

digital wallets)?  
Response:  Any additional options not mentioned in the RFP may be presented. 

 
21. Please elaborate on what is meant by PC-based cashiering in reference to a system that might 

be desired by the City in the future (ref. p. 55 and 27). 
Response:  Receipt of payments online. 

 
22. Is the City expecting a vendor to offer a smart phone app, as currently used (ref. p. 55)? 

Response:  Two departments need to be able to accept payments away from their home 
base.  It does not have to be a smartphone app. 

 
23. Does the City wish for additional locations to accept Amex? 

Response:  No 
 
24. Is the City interested in seeing pricing options for both merchant-funded and convenience fee 

modes? 
Response:  No, the City is only interested in a pricing option that will pass the fees to the 
consumer. 

 
25. Does the City have a preference whether the hard copies are bound, in binders, or otherwise 

prepared? 
Response:  The City does not have a preference. 

 
 
 
 
 

Andrea J. McCorvey, 
Purchasing Division Manager 
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Annual # of Sales Annual $ of Sales # Terminals Virtual Terminals SwipeSimple App ShopKeep on Ipads
COOPER CREEK TENNIS 5,058 $93,830 1

CIVIC CENTER ADMIN 46 $23,801 1
CIVIC CENTER CONCESSIONS 6,694 $59,327 10

CODES & INSPECTIONS 3,547 $512,654 1
BRITT DAVID POTTERY 649 $39,552 1
RECORDERS COURT 7,331 $1,372,090 2

OCCUPATION TAX 2,050 $1,349,054 4
COLLECTIONS 424 $66,226 1 5

REVENUE DIVISION 153 $17,824 1
P & R ATHLETICS 121 $28,161 1
RIGDON RD POOL 127 $679 2

DBLE CHURCHES POOL 1,067 $7,146 2
SHIRLEY WINSTON POOL 72 $406 2

PSALMOND RD POOL 558 $3,589 2
 LAKE OLIVER MARINA 6,104 $63,153 1
ENG/PLANNING DEPT 135 $17,211 1

SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT 986 $57,930 1 1
PUBLIC WORKS 4 $625 1 1

Natatorium 2,804 $66,997 2
Columbus Fire and EMS 121 $29,308 1

Community Schools 19,568 $1,166,526 - 23
METRA PARKING FINES 1,303 $74,739 paypal online

P & R Rentals 220 $89,232 1
Bull Creek Golf Course 25,667 $748,931 2

Oxbow Creek Golf Course 7,732 $164,936 1
Trade Center 715 $302,469 2

TOTALS 93,256 $6,356,395 34 28 2 10
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